
Agenda &
 minutes

Full Council meeting of
Tuesday, 12 December 2017  

www.portsmouth.gov.uk

Public Document Pack

http://www.portsmouth.gov.uk/




Portsmouth City Council

A MEETING OF THE COUNCIL will be held at the Council Chamber - The 
Guildhall on Tuesday, 12 December 2017 at 2.00 pm and all members of 
the council are hereby summoned to attend to consider and resolve upon 
the following business:-

Agenda
1  Members' Interests 

2  To approve as a correct record the Minutes of (Pages 7 - 14)

 the ordinary council meeting held on 14 November.

3  To receive such communications as the Lord Mayor may desire to lay 
before the Council, including apologies for absence. 

4  Deputations from the Public under Standing Order No 24. 

5  Appointments 

6  Urgent Business - To receive and consider any urgent and important 
business from Members of the Cabinet in accordance with Standing 
Order No 26. 

7  Portsmouth City Council Revenue Budget 2018/19 - Savings Proposals 
(Pages 15 - 56)

To receive and consider the attached report of the Cabinet held on 
11 December 2017, the recommendations for which will follow.

8  Review of the political balance on committees and Panels (Pages 57 - 
60)

To consider the Chief Executive's attached report. 

Notices of Motion: Process information 

Standing Order (32(d)) requires a vote by members before each motion to 
determine whether or not the motion is to be debated at the meeting or 
stand referred to the Cabinet or relevant Committee (including Scrutiny) to 
report back to a future meeting.

9  Notices of Motion 

(a)  Contamination of Oceans 

Proposed Councillor David Ashmore
Seconded Councillor Ben Dowling



As Portsmouth is the UK's only island city meaning we are 
surrounded by water, this Council is invested in ensuring we have 
safe, clean and environmentally friendly waters for the people, 
animals and plant life of Portsmouth.

Council notes the National Federation of Women’s Institutes’ new 
campaign concerning the contamination of the oceans from 
microplastic fibres, which passed with an overwhelming 98.9% 
majority at the 2017 WI Annual Meeting.

Microplastic fibres are small plastic fragments 5 mm or smaller that 
are shed from synthetic clothes when laundered and end up in the 
sea and wider environment. The scale of the problem is large; 
millions of people wash their clothes every week, shedding these 
tiny particles that are too small to be caught by the machine’s filters, 
flowing into the sewage system and eventually into the ocean. Due 
to their small size, microplastic fibres are readily ingested by 
aquatic life, filling up their stomachs which can eventually cause 
death. We also know that the plastic fibres attract toxins and 
harmful chemical pollutants which then end up in the food we eat, 
the long-term effects of which are not yet clear.
 
Given the scale of the problem, there is an urgent need for more 
research to identify and develop potential solutions. We need to 
better understand the long term impact of microplastic fibres on the 
marine environment, develop a deeper understanding about why 
different textiles perform differently when washed, and to identify 
ways to prevent fibres being released into the water supply.
 
Council notes the Secretary of State for Environment, Food and 
Rural Affairs The Rt Hon Michael Gove MP’s recent commitment 
that government will undertake work to identify ways to reduce the 
amount of plastic entering our seas.  
 
Council asks the Cabinet Member for Environment and Community 
Safety to write on behalf of the Council to the city’s two Members of 
Parliament, Stephen Morgan MP and Penny Mordaunt MP, and 
The Rt Hon Michael Gove MP asking for the issue of microplastic 
fibres to be fully considered in the government’s work to explore 
new methods of reducing plastic waste.

(b)  Government Funding for Cladding Council Buildings 

Proposed Councillor Tom Wood
Seconded Councillor Leo Madden

Council is very concerned by the events at Grenfell Tower and 
offers it condolences to those who lost family members and loved 
ones in the fire.

Council thanks Officers and the Hampshire Fire Service for their 
outstanding work to start to remove the cladding for Horatia House 
and Leamington House and put in place additional measures to 



ensure residents safety while the cladding is being removed.

Council notes that 

1. the Government initially promised to cover the costs of works 
necessary as a result of Grenfell, and particularly that the 
Secretary of State for Communities and Local Government 
promised on the 16th June that the government would do 
“whatever is required” to support works necessary as a result 
of the Grenfell disaster.

2. That government has abandoned this commitment and 
intends only to provide Councils with “financial flexibilities” 
and not actual grants

3. that whatever “financial flexibility” the government provides, 
that is not a government grant means that council tenants 
will be the ones who ultimately pay.

Council reaffirms that no matter what decisions the government 
makes the work to ensure Horatia House and Leamington House 
are as safe as possible must and will continue

Council condemns the decision by the Secretary of State to U-turn 
on his commitment 
 
Council calls on the Leader of the Council to lead a cross party 
delegation to the Secretary of State for Communities and Local 
Government asking him to honour his commitment and provide 
funding to Portsmouth City Council for the works on Horatia and 
Leamington house.

10  Questions from Members under Standing Order No 17 (None 
submitted) 

David Williams
Chief Executive

Members of the public are now permitted to use both audio visual recording devices and 
social media during this meeting, on the understanding that it neither disrupts the meeting 
nor records those stating explicitly that they do not wish to be recorded. Guidance on the 
use of devices at meetings open to the public is available on the Council's website and 
posters on the wall of the meeting's venue.

This meeting is webcast (videoed), viewable via the Council's livestream account at 
https://livestream.com/accounts/14063785

https://livestream.com/accounts/14063785


If any member of the public wishing to attend the meeting has access requirements, please 
notify the contact, the Local Democracy Manager at Stewart.Agland@portsmouthcc.gov.uk.  
Please also use this email address for any deputation requests.

Civic Offices
Guildhall Square
PORTSMOUTH
4 December 2017

mailto:Stewart.Agland@portsmouthcc.gov.uk


14 November 2017 1 
 

 
 

MINUTES OF A MEETING OF THE COUNCIL held at the Guildhall 
Portsmouth on Tuesday, 14 November 2017 at 2.00 pm 
 

Council Members Present 
 

The Right Worshipful The Lord Mayor 
Councillor Ken Ellcome (in the Chair) 

 
Councillors 

 
 Dave Ashmore 

Simon Bosher 
Jennie Brent 
Ryan Brent 
Yahiya Chowdhury 
Alicia Denny 
Ben Dowling 
John Ferrett 
James Fleming 
David Fuller 
Colin Galloway 
Paul Godier 
Steve Hastings 
Hannah Hockaday 
Suzy Horton 
Lee Hunt 
Frank Jonas BEM 
Donna Jones 
Ian Lyon 
Leo Madden 

Hugh Mason 
Lee Mason 
Gemma New 
Robert New 
Scott Payter-Harris 
Steve Pitt 
Stuart Potter 
Will Purvis 
Darren Sanders 
Lynne Stagg 
Luke Stubbs 
Julie Bird 
Linda Symes 
David Tompkins 
Gerald Vernon-Jackson CBE 
Steve Wemyss 
Matthew Winnington 
Neill Young 
Rob Wood 
Tom Wood 

 
 

82. Declarations of Interests under Standing Order 13(2)(b)  
 
There were no declarations of interest. 
 

83. Minutes of the Ordinary Council Meeting held on 17 October 2017  
 
It was 
 
Proposed by Councillor Donna Jones 
Seconded by Councillor Gerald Vernon-Jackson 
 
That the minutes of the council meeting held on 17 October 2017 be 
confirmed and signed as a correct record. 
 
RESOLVED that the minutes of the council meeting held on 17 October 
2017 be confirmed and signed as a correct record. 
 

84. Communications and apologies for absence  
 

Page 7

Agenda Item 2



2 14 November 2017  
 
Apologies for absence were received on behalf of Councillor Stephen 
Morgan MP. 
 
The Lord Mayor invited the Leader of the Council, Councillor Donna Jones to 
make an announcement.  On behalf of the council,  the Leader of the Council 
congratulated Councillor Scott Harris on his recent marriage and advised that 
he had changed his surname to "Payter-Harris".  
 
The Lord Mayor gave detailed information concerning filming in the chamber 
and reiterated the council's rules which strictly prohibit the filming, 
photographing or recording of members of the public unless they are 
addressing the meeting and only then if they do not actively object.  Filming 
from gallery to gallery is also prohibited. 
 
The Lord Mayor then gave details of the evacuation procedure and reminded 
everyone that there are building evacuation signs displayed both inside the 
public galleries and in the chamber itself. 
 
The Lord Mayor welcomed Mr Brian Johnson who is a member of the 
Independent Remuneration Panel, to the meeting and advised that his 
attendance related to agenda item 8. 
 
 

85. Deputations from the Public under Standing Order No 24  
 
The City Solicitor advised that five deputation requests had been received by 
the deadline - all in respect of agenda item 9(a). 
 
A deputation in support of the notice of motion was given by Ms Brotherhood. 
 
Deputations against the notice of motion were given by Ms Mooney, 
Ms Farrow and Ms Butler.  Ms Vaughn-Spruce also gave a deputation against 
the notice of motion that included a short video clip. 
 
The City Solicitor thanked all those who had made deputations. 
 

86. Questions from the Public under Standing Order 25  
 
There were no questions from the public. 
 

87. Appointments  
 
The Lord Mayor advised that he had been notified of proposed appointments 
to be made in respect of the Planning Committee membership as previously 
circulated to members and these were agreed. 
 
RESOLVED that in respect of the Planning Committee 
 

 Councillor Vernon-Jackson replaced Councillor Fuller 

 Councillor Gemma New replaced Councillor Robert New 

Page 8



14 November 2017 3 
 

 
 

 Councillor Denny replaced Councillor Gemma New as a standing 
deputy on the committee. 

 
88. Urgent Business urgent Standing Order No 26  

 
There was no urgent business. 
 

89. Independent Remuneration Panel  
 
The Lord Mayor advised that the recommendations of the Independent 
Remuneration Panel had been forwarded to the council via the Governance & 
Audit & Standards Committee which met on 27 October 2017 and confirmed it 
was content with the process that had been followed.  The panel's 
recommendations have been previously circulated with the Chief Executive's 
overview report and supporting information.  The Lord Mayor invited 
Mr Johnson, the Independent Remuneration Panel's representative to 
address the council on the panel's review and its recommendations. 
 
Mr Johnson explained that the panel had met and had considered the scheme 
taking account of the comments made by members.  He advised that minimal 
changes had been made to the scheme.  These included providing clarity 
around outside body appointments, bringing travel arrangements into line with 
best practice and including the Lord Mayor and Deputy Lord Mayor in the 
scheme. 
 
The Lord Mayor thanked Mr Johnson and all members of the Independent 
Remuneration Panel for their work in carrying out the review. 
 
RESOLVED that  
 
(1) No change should be made to any of the various elements 

comprising the Members Allowances Scheme ("the Scheme") 
except that, 
 
(a)  the Lord Mayor and Deputy Lord Mayor are to be included 

in the Scheme with a Special Responsibility Allowance 
(SRA)  multiple of Basic Allowance of 0.7 and 0.1 
respectively making the positions index-linked to be 
effective from the date of this Council Meeting.  

 

(b) a note would be added to the Scheme to clarify that any 
remuneration received through representing the Council on 
any Outside Body sits outside the Scheme. 
 

(c) the wording in the section on Carers' Allowance is amended 
to link it to the "Portsmouth Living Wage" (currently £7.85 
per hour) 
 

(d) the wording of the first paragraph of section B (1) Travelling 
Allowances is amended to add the following wording  

 

Page 9



4 14 November 2017  
 

"That "Travel claims to a destination outside the City must 
be from a member's Portsmouth registered address, (or 
from the Council's Civic Offices if that is the member's 
starting point and is nearer to the destination).  Claims from 
another location can be made if it is nearer to the 
destination outside the City." 

 
(2) Notwithstanding the index-linked arrangement, a further review of 

the Scheme be carried out to be completed in time for the start of 
the 2021-2022 financial year to meet the 4-yearly review 
requirement. 

 

(3) The existing Independent Remuneration Panel be retained as a 
Standing Panel in the interim period, whose members (with a 
quorum of three for any decision to be taken) can consider issues 
that arise in connection with the Scheme before the next review, 
either by email or in meetings. 

 

(4) The Members of the Independent Remuneration Panel be thanked 
for their time and attention in undertaking the review. 

 
Notices of Motion 

90. Notice of Motion (a)  
 
It was  
 
Proposed by Councillor Will Purvis 
Seconded by Councillor Robert New 
 
That notice of motion (a) as set out on the agenda be debated today. 
 
Upon being put to the vote this was CARRIED. 
 
It was  
 
Proposed by Councillor Will Purvis 
Seconded by Councillor Robert New 
 
That notice of motion (a) as set out on the agenda be adopted. 
 
As an amendment it was 
 
Proposed by Councillor Ian Lyon 
Seconded by Councillor Gerald Vernon-Jackson 
 
To 
 
"Delete from paragraph 1 the words "activities of anti-abortion protestors" and 
replace with "protests" 
 

Page 10



14 November 2017 5 
 

 
 

Delete from paragraph 5 the words "anti-abortion protestors" and replace with 
"targeted protests" 
 
Also in paragraph 5, delete the word "women" and replace with "private 
individuals"." 
 
The mover of the original motion, Councillor Will Purvis agreed to subsume 
into it the amendment standing in the name of Councillor Lyon. 
 
Following debate upon being put to the vote, the substantive notice of motion 
incorporating the amendment standing in the name of Councillor Lyon was 
CARRIED. 
 

RESOLVED that the following notice of motion as amended be adopted  
 
"This Council notes the recent protests outside the main entrance of the 
St Mary’s Hospital Health Campus in Milton, the location of the British 
Pregnancy Advice Service clinic. 
 
This Council also recognises the concerns of staff and those seeking 
treatment at the clinic, for example one patient said "It made an 
extremely difficult decision even more horrendous than it could/should 
have been… I suffer from mental health problems and I felt the 
comments made by protesters significantly increased my anxiety ... No 
one should ever have to deal with that." 
 
This motion is explicitly not one for or against abortion, which is 
available in Great Britain in the circumstances laid out in the Abortion 
Act 1967.  This Council believes that all individuals should be protected 
from harassment and intimidation when accessing legally existing 
health services, and that local residents should not to be exposed to 
related disruption and distress on a daily basis. 
 
The right to protest needs to be balanced with the right of pregnant 
women to choose and to obtain advice and treatment in confidence and 
free from intimidation.  Those who wish to campaign against abortion 
have plenty of opportunities and locations in which to do so.  The area 
outside a clinic need not and should not be one of them. 
 
This Council asks the Cabinet to do all within its powers to prevent 
targeted protests from intimidating and harassing private individuals 
outside the St Mary’s Hospital, and its entrances. 
 
The Council also notes the steps taken by Ealing Council to pursue a 
Public Space Protection Order to prevent harassment of women 
accessing pregnancy advice services in their Borough. 
 
This Council therefore requests that a report be brought to the Cabinet 
Member for Community Safety fully exploring every possible option, 
including the use of a Public Spaces Protection Order, to create a ‘buffer 
zone’ around this location to provide the necessary reassurance and 

Page 11



6 14 November 2017  
 
security that all women need and deserve as they make their own 
personal decision about their pregnancy." 

 
91. Notice of Motion (b)  

 
It was 
 
Proposed by Councillor Donna Jones 
Seconded by Councillor Lee Mason 
 
That notice of motion (b) as set out on the agenda be debated today. 
 
Upon being put to the vote this was CARRIED. 
 
It was 
 
Proposed by Councillor Donna Jones 
Seconded by Councillor Lee Mason 
 
That notice of motion (b) as set out on the agenda be adopted. 
 
The Leader of the Council asked that thanks be put on record to Councillors 
Frank Jonas, Lynne Stagg, David Fuller, Hugh Mason and Lee Mason for all 
their work to promote twinning and forging strong links across the world.  The 
Leader also placed on record thanks to the Culture & Leisure staff involved in 
the Museums Service and also to the Caen Twinning Friendship Committee. 
 
Following debate upon being put to the vote notice of motion (b) as set out on 
the agenda was CARRIED. 
 
RESOLVED that council adopted the following notice of motion 
 

"Cities across the world benefit from the cultural and economic 
prosperity that twinning and associated working can bring.  Portsmouth 
City Council is fortunate to have twinning and friendship links with cities 
around the world from Japan and Australia to the United States of 
America.  
 
Thirty years ago Portsmouth and Caen agreed a formal twinning link.  
The agreement was signed by Councillors in the Guildhall on 5th June 
1987 under the then Leader of the council Councillor Ian Gibson and 
Lord Mayor Councillor Jim Lodge. 
 
Over the years the city of Portsmouth has hosted councillors, Mayors, 
businesses, tourists, and historians who have celebrated the 
significance of the two cities. With companies such as Brittany Ferries 
prospering as the friendship grows and the two cultures sharing their 
common history of the significance of the D Day landings, this Chamber 
is pleased to celebrate this active and successful link.  
 
The Council therefore resolves that the Leader of the Council formally 
present an official letter commemorating the special relationship 

Page 12



14 November 2017 7 
 

 
 

between the two cities to the Mayor of Caen, Mayor Joël Bruneau, to 
thank him on behalf of the City of Portsmouth for the 30 years of 
friendship our cities have enjoyed when they meet at the end of 
November.” 
 

92. Questions from Members under Standing Order No 17  
 
There were two questions before council. 
 
Question No 1 was from Councillor Ben Dowling  
 
"What planning and preparation has Portsmouth City Council undertaken for 
changes caused by Brexit?" 
 
This and supplementary questions were answered by the Leader of the 
Council, Councillor Donna Jones. 
 
Question No 2 was from Councillor Julie Bird 
 
"The Portsmouth Lottery has now been running for twelve months.  Could the 
cabinet member please update council as to how much has been raised so far 
for local charities and what the average cash prize amount is per winner?" 
 
This and supplementary questions were answered by the Deputy Leader of 
the Council, Councillor Luke Stubbs. 
 
 
The Lord Mayor thanked everyone for their attendance. 
 
 
The meeting concluded at 4.50 pm. 
 
 
 

  

Lord Mayor  
 

Page 13



This page is intentionally left blank



 

 
Agenda item:  

Decision maker: 
 

Cabinet 
City Council 

 
Subject: 
 

 
Portsmouth City Council Revenue Budget  2018/19 - 
Savings Proposals 
 

Date of decision: 
 

11th December 2017 (Cabinet) 
12th December 2017 (City Council) 

 
Report by: 
 

 
Director of Finance & Information Services (Section 151 
Officer) 

Wards affected: 
 

All 

Key decision: 
 

Yes 

Budget & policy framework 
decision: 
 

Yes 

 

 

1. Executive Summary  
 

 
1.1 The austerity programme to repair the national public finances has been in 

place now for 7 years.  Over that period, since 2011/12, Central Government 
funding to Portsmouth City Council has reduced by over £73m (amounting a 
48% reduction in total Government Funding).  Taken together with other 
financial pressures that have been experienced by the City Council (mainly 
relating to inflation, the effects of an ageing population on care services and the 
increased requirements for the safeguarding of vulnerable children), the City 
Council has had to make overall savings over the same period of £94m, 
representing circa 44% of the Council's net controllable spending. 
 

1.2 The forecast for the national public finances set out in the Autumn Budget 
recently are expected to improve for this financial year and next year and then 
worsen over the subsequent 3 years compared with the Spring 2017 
projections.  The worsening position is largely due to the lower forecasts of 
growth over the period to 2021/22.  The Autumn Budget has left Government 
Departmental Spending limits unaltered, implying that the 4 year Local 
Government Finance Settlement that the City Council has accepted will remain 
intact.  Additional revenue funding of £2.8bn has been announced for the NHS 
but it is expected that this will stay within the NHS rather than being available to 
support Local Authorities' Social Care budgets. 

 
  

Page 15

Agenda Item 7



 

1.3 The announcements in the Autumn Budget are not expected to materially alter 
the Council's expected revenue funding from Central Government however 
other factors such as inflation generally,  the increasing elderly population and 
the increase in the National Living Wage (4.4%) may impact on the Council's 
forecasts for future years beyond 2018/19.  

 
1.4 Other variables that form part of the Council's overall financial forecasts remain 

uncertain such as the amount of retained business rates that will be achievable 
and the amount of Council Tax that will be received.   
 

1.5 At this stage, pending a comprehensive revision of the Council's medium term 
financial forecasts in February 2018, it remains prudent to plan for a minimum 
savings requirement for 2018/19 of £4m.  However, as a consequence of the 
consultations and variables described above, future years' savings forecasts for 
2019/20 and beyond may change from the £4m per annum currently forecast. 

 
1.6 The proposed 2018/19 savings amounting to £4m have been developed in 

accordance with the Medium Term Financial Strategy and with full regard to the 
Budget Consultation exercise.  The overall aim of the Strategy is described as 
follows: 
 

"In year" expenditure matches "in year" income over the medium term whilst 
continuing the drive towards regeneration of the City, being entrepreneurial and 

protecting the most important and valued services 
 

1.7 Budget consultations in previous years agreed that income generation should 
be pursued as an alternative to cuts, that joint working was welcomed and that 
services to vulnerable adults and children should be protected.  This year's 
consultation has re-affirmed that services to vulnerable adults and children 
should be protected but has clearly identified "Rubbish and Recycling" as their 
first priority.  This was followed in priority order by Children's Social Care, then 
Adult Social Care and then Maintenance and Seafront.   

 

1.8 Additionally, a majority of respondents (73%) indicated that they would accept a 
Council Tax increase for general purposes of 2% or more (with the largest 
category of residents indicating that they would accept a 4% increase).  50% of 
respondents also indicated that they would accept an additional increase to 
support vulnerable residents (i.e. the Adult Social Care Precept). 

 
  

Page 16



 

1.9 In accordance with the Medium Term Financial Strategy and the outcome of the 
Budget Consultation, the Administration's proposals for the £4m Budget 
Savings for 2018/19 are summarised as follows: 

 
(i) Savings analysis: 
 

Description of Saving Savings 

Efficiency Savings (little or no reduction in Services) £2.4m 60% 

Additional Income  £1.4m 36% 

Service Reduction £0.2m 4% 

Total £4.0m 100% 

 
(ii) No savings from Children's Social Care 

 
(iii) Adult Social Care Services amounting to 1.6% of their budget 

compared with the average saving across all services of 2.1% 
 

(iv) A proposed Council Tax increase of 1.99% for general purposes 
 
(v) A further increase in Council Tax amounting to 3.0% in total, phased in 

over 2018/19 and 2019/20, specifically for Adult Social Care  
  
 

1.10 Following the re-lauch of the Voluntary Sector Capacity & Transition Fund 
aimed at improving the sustainability of the voluntary sector, assisting in 
building capacity and supporting any necessary transformation, the fund is now 
almost fully subscribed.   The use of the fund and its expected outcomes are 
anticipated to be successful and the Administration propose to make a further 
transfer from the MTRS Reserve of £500,000 to continue to support the 
development of the Voluntary Sector in the City but importantly to also 
encourage and incentivise innovation between the Council and the Sector.  
 

1.11 Whilst the savings proposals for 2018/19 are considered realistic, they are not 
without risk and the Council's Contingency and Portfolio Reserves will be 
carefully prepared to provide strong mitigation.  Additionally, Children's and 
Adults Social Care will still have to address underlying deficits of £1.8m and 
£1.8m, respectively.   

 
1.12 For Children's Social Care, a plan is in place to reduce that deficit and no 

savings are proposed from Children's Social Care for 2018/19 whilst the deficit 
reduction measures are in place.  

 
1.13 For Adults Social Care (ASC), the funding received via the ASC Precept plus 

the transformation initiatives funded by the improved Better Care Fund 
Allocation (amounting to £7.8m for the period 2017/18 to 2019/20) is planned to 
be used to remedy the underlying deficit and meet the demographic cost 
pressures facing the service. 

 
1.14 Looking forward beyond 2018/19 still with significant savings to be made, the 

Council will need to focus its strategy on entrepreneurial activities and 

Page 17



 

regeneration if it is to avoid significant cuts to Services.  The alternative is to 
rely more heavily on efficiency savings and service cuts which would inevitably 
fall heavily on Children's Social Care and Health & Social Care since these 
areas, in aggregate, account for 53% of the Council's total controllable 
spending.  

 
1.15 Approval of the proposals within this report will maintain the Council's financial 

health and resilience and its ability to respond in a measured and proportionate 
way to any "financial shocks" as well as having sufficient financial capacity to 
exploit opportunities as they arise. 

 
1.16 The proposals within this report are a necessary pre-cursor to the Annual 

Budget and Council Tax Setting meeting of the 13th February 2018 when the 
Council will be requested to formally approve the Budget for 2018/19 and the 
associated Council Tax for the year.  Should the savings proposals contained 
within this report be approved, they will form the basis of the Budget for 
2018/19 presented to Council.  That report will also include a comprehensive 
revision of the Council's future financial forecasts and set the consequent future 
savings requirements for the period 2019/20 to 2021/22. 

            
 

Page 18



 

OVERALL AIM 
 

"In year" expenditure matches "in year" 
income over the medium term whilst 

continuing the drive towards regeneration of 
the City, being entrepreneurial and 

protecting the most important and valued 
services 

2 Purpose of Report 
 
2.1 The report describes the financial challenge facing the City Council for the 

three years 2018/19 to 2020/21 and the likely implications for Council services 
to businesses and residents.   It also describes, in overall terms, the way in 
which the Administration will seek to address this challenge through its 
Medium Term Financial Strategy, described as follows: 

 
 
 
 
 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 

2.2 The report sets out the need to find £12m of savings over the next three years 
with a minimum of £4m to be made in 2018/19 (assuming a 1.99% increase in 
Council Tax for general purposes and a total of a 3.0% increase for the ASC 
Precept phased over 2018/19 and 2019/20).  It recommends the level of 
savings to be made across Portfolios and other activities in 2018/19 consistent 
with both the outcomes of the recent budget consultation exercise and the 
overall financial strategy.  The appendices highlight the likely savings proposals 
and implications associated with the overall Portfolio savings levels proposed. 

 
2.3 Also proposed within this report is the intention to replenish the Voluntary 

Sector Capacity & Transition Fund to ensure continued support for the 
development of secure and sustainable voluntary sector services in the future. 

 
2.4 Finally, the report stresses the important contribution that the MTRS Reserve 

and the Capital Programme can make to the Council's overall Medium Term 
Financial Strategy.  The General Fund Revenue Budget is the most constrained 
of all Council budgets and the sustainability of Council Services will be better 
protected if both MTRS funds and the Capital programme are directed towards 
generating savings or raising income.      

 
2.5 This report is being brought at this time to provide greater opportunity for any 

necessary consultation, notice and other lead-in times to take place prior to 
implementation in order that full year savings can be made.  Should approval of 
the savings be considered at a later date, a greater number or deeper savings 
will be required in order to compensate for any delay in implementation. 
 

Page 19



 

2.6 In particular, this report explains: 
 

 

(a) In broad terms the challenge for the City in the current economic 
climate 

(b) The general financial constraints on the City Council both currently and 
in future years 

(c) The Council's Medium Term Financial Strategy 

(d) Where underlying budget deficits currently exist and how these will be 
managed 

(e) A change to the Council's Authorised Limit for External Debt arising 
from the premium paid to the Council in respect of the lease of 
Wightlink  

(f) Key assumptions built into the City Council’s forecasts for 2018/19 to 
2020/21 which give rise to a forecast £12m deficit over the period and 
which include: 

i. Revenue Support Grant 

ii. Other Non-ring fenced grants  

iii. Business Rates 

iv. Council Tax yield  

v. Inflation and interest rates 

(g) The level of uncertainty surrounding future years funding sources from 
Council Tax, Business Rates and Government Grant and the extent to 
which this could affect the forecast £12m deficit over the period  

(h) The Medium Term Financial Strategy aimed at meeting the Council's 
core aim whilst addressing the forecast £12m deficit 

(i) The key themes arising from the budget consultation that took place 
over the October / November period to assist Members in their 
consideration over the level and nature of savings to be made across 
Portfolios 

(j) In the context of the Medium Term Financial Strategy and the Budget 
Consultation, the proposed savings amount for each Portfolio / 
Committee to be made in 2018/19  

(k) The detailed indicative savings (Appendix B) that could be made by 
each Portfolio / Committee in meeting its overall savings amount in 
order to provide the Council with the assurance necessary to approve 
the recommended savings amount for each Portfolio / Committee 

(l) The need to agree the Portfolio / Committee savings amounts at this 
early stage in order that any necessary consultation, notice periods or 
other lead times can commence in order to avoid greater and deeper 
savings arising from any delay 

(m) The proposed replenishment of the Voluntary Sector Capacity & 
Transition Fund 

Page 20



 

(n) How the proposals contained within this report will be fed into the 
formal Budget and Council Tax 2018/19 proposals to be considered by 
the City Council on 13th February 2018 

3 Recommendations 
 

3.1 That the following be approved: 

 

(a) That the Council's Budget for 2018/19 be prepared on the basis of a 
1.99% Council Tax increase for general purposes 

(b) That the Council continues to take advantage of the opportunity to 
increase the level of Council Tax for an "Adult Social Care Precept" within 
the limits set by Central Government (i.e. a 3% increase phased over the 
financial years 2018/19 and 2019/20), and consequently that the 
additional funding is passported direct to Adult Social Care to provide for 
otherwise unfunded cost pressures.  

(c) That the Council's authorised limit for external debt in 2017/18 is 
increased by £45m to £653m 

(d) The savings proposals for each Portfolio amounting, in total, to £4m for 
2018/19 and continuing into future years as set out in Appendix A to 
enable appropriate consultation and notice periods to be given to affected 
parties 

(e) That £500,000 is transferred from the MTRS Reserve to replenish the 
Voluntary Sector Capacity & Transition  Fund  

 

3.2 That the following be noted: 

(a) The Budget Savings Requirement for 2018/19 of £4m approved by the 
City Council was based on a Council Tax increase of 1.99%; each 1% 
change (increase or decrease) in the Council Tax results in a change to 
the savings requirement of £708,0001 

(b) The key themes arising from the budget consultation 

(c) The indicative savings proposals set out in Appendix B which are provided 
for the purpose of demonstrating to the Council that the Portfolio savings 
as recommended in paragraph 3.1 (d) above are robust and deliverable  

(d) The likely impact of savings as set out in Appendix B  

(e) That the responsibility of the City Council is to approve the overall Budget 
and the associated cash limits of its Portfolios and Committees; it is not 
the responsibility of the City Council to approve any individual savings 
within those Portfolios / Committees 

(f) That it is the responsibility of the individual Portfolio Holders (not full 
Council) to approve the individual savings proposals and the Portfolio 

                                            
1
 Tax increases will be subject to Council Tax referendum thresholds which are at this stage unknown 

Page 21



 

Holder can therefore, in response to any consultation, alter, amend or 
substitute any of the indicative savings proposal(s) set out in Appendix B 
with alternative proposal(s) amounting to the same value within their 
Portfolio  

(g) Managers will commence the implementation of the approved savings 
required and any necessary consultation process or notice process  

(h) That there is no general provision for Budget Pressures and that it is the 
responsibility of the Portfolio Holder to manage any Budget Pressures 
which arise from the overall resources available to the Portfolio (which 
includes their Portfolio Reserve) 

(i) In accordance with the approved financial framework, it is the 
responsibility of the Portfolio Holder, in consultation with the Director of 
Finance & Information Services (S151 Officer), to release funds from the 
Portfolio Reserve in accordance with the provisions set out in paragraph 
10.19   

(j) The MTRS Reserve held to fund the upfront costs associated with Spend 
to Save Schemes, Invest to Save Schemes and redundancies currently 
holds a very modest uncommitted balance of £2.0m2 and will only be 
replenished from an approval to the transfer of any non-Portfolio 
underspends at year end into this reserve  

 

4 Economic & Financial Context 
 
4.1 The forecast for the national public finances set out in the Autumn Budget 

recently are expected to improve for this financial year and next year and then 
worsen over the subsequent 3 years compared with the Spring 2017 
projections.  The worsening position is largely due to the lower forecasts of 
growth over the period to 2021/22 resulting in lower than expected tax receipts, 
higher debt levels and increased public sector spending (mainly NHS). 
 

4.2 Additional capital funding for infrastructure has also been announced, mainly 
targeted at improving transport connectivity, notably the £1.7bn Transforming 
Cities Fund, and housing delivery through a £1.1bn Land Assembly Fund and 
an additional £2.7bn for the Housing Infrastructure Fund against which the 
Council has currently bid. 

 
4.3 Despite the worsening position for the national public finances, the Office for 

Budget Responsibility still forecasts that the Government remains on track to 
meet its fiscal rules (i.e. remain within an annual deficit of 3% of GDP).    
 

4.4 The Autumn Budget has left Government Departmental Spending limits 
unaltered, implying that the 4 year Local Government Finance Settlement that 
the City Council has accepted will remain intact.  Additional revenue funding of 
£2.8bn has been announced for the NHS but it is expected that this will stay 

                                            
2
 Assuming that the transfer of £500,000 to the Voluntary Sector Capacity and Transition Fund as 

recommended in this report is approved 

Page 22



 

within the NHS rather than being available to support Local Authorities' Social 
Care budgets. 
 

4.5 Measures intended to greater incentivise bringing empty properties back into 
use were also announced.  This enables Local Authorities to increase the 
premium (currently 150%) to 200%.  It is expected however that this will require 
primary legislation and therefore will not be available to be applied until April 
2019.  

 
4.6 The announcements in the Autumn Budget are not expected to materially alter 

the Council's expected revenue funding (see Section 5) from Central 
Government however other factors such as inflation generally, rising pension 
costs, the increasing elderly population and the increase in the National Living 
Wage (4.4%) may impact on the Council's forecasts for future years beyond 
2018/19 (see Section 6). 

 
 
 

5 Local Government Funding Outlook - 2018/19 and Beyond 
 
Local Government Finance Settlement 2018/19 & Beyond 

 
5.1 The Local Government Finance Settlement is the term used to describe the 

main non-ring fenced Revenue and Capital grant funding allocations from 
Government. 
 

5.2 Over the past 7 years (since 2011/12), Central Government funding to 
Portsmouth City Council has reduced by over £73m (amounting a 48% 
reduction in total Government Funding).  Taken together with other financial 
pressures that have been experienced by the City Council (mainly relating to 
inflation, the effects of an ageing population on care services and the increased 
requirements for the safeguarding of vulnerable children), the City Council has 
had to make overall savings over the same period of £94m, representing circa 
44% of the Council's net controllable spending. 

 
5.3 Looking forward, the Council's current forecasts which run to 2020/21 indicate 

an overall savings requirement of £12m over the forthcoming 3 year period. 
This will mean that over the period of the austerity programme, funding from 
Government will have reduced by some 56%. 
 

5.4 The Local Government Finance Settlement for 2018/19 which currently 
accounts for approximately 39% of controllable spending is expected to be 
announced in either the second or third week of December 2017.  As previously 
mentioned, it is anticipated that the settlement for 2018/19 will be as set out in 
the 4 year Finance Settlement upon which the Council's savings requirements 
are based.  Consequently, it is not anticipated that the Council's overall 
financial position (and its deficits) will be significantly affected by the 
Settlement.  

 

Page 23



 

5.5 In overall terms, the Council expects a further reduction in Government Funding 
over the three year period 2018/19 to 2020/21 of £12.4m, representing a further 
funding reduction of 31% compared to current levels. 

 
 

5.6 Whilst the Local Government Finance Settlement is a significant factor in 
determining the Council's overall financial position and therefore any necessary 
savings, other significant factors that will affect the Council's future savings 
requirements include Business Rates income, Council Tax income, inflation, 
interest rates, any new unfunded burdens passed down from Government and 
any changes in regulations. 
 

 
Council Tax 2018/19 & Beyond 

 
5.7 Portsmouth City Council remains a low taxing Authority.  The Council currently 

receives approximately £6.0m per annum less in Council Tax than the average 
Unitary Authority within its statistical neighbour group, a gap which the Council 
would otherwise not need to fund through savings. 
 

5.8 The original assumptions for 2018/19, 2019/20 and 2020/21 are for a 1.99% 
increase in Council Tax each year for general purposes and in addition, a total 
of a 3.0% increase in Council Tax for the Adult Social Care precept phased 
over 2018/19 and 2019/20.  This generates a total of £5.0m in income over the 
3 year period.   

 
5.9 For general purposes an increase in the amount of Council Tax payable by the 

average council taxpayer3 in Portsmouth (with a 1.99% increase) is £19.80 per 
year (or 38 pence per week). 

 
5.10 Each 1% change (increase or decrease) in the Council Tax results in a change 

to the savings requirement of £708,0004.  Should the Council wish to reduce 
the assumed level of Council Tax increase from 1.99%, equivalent savings will 
need to be made in order to remedy the associated increase in the overall 
deficit.  Conversely, any increase in Council Tax beyond the 1.99% for general 
purposes will make a contribution towards the overall deficit, meaning that the 
extent of savings to be made will reduce.  Council tax increases for general 
purposes however, are subject to a "referendum threshold" which is a limit (i.e. 
council tax increase) that to exceed requires a "yes" vote in a referendum.  The 
Council Tax referendum limits are not expected to be announced until the 
second or third week in December as part of the Local Government Finance 
Settlement.   

 
5.11 The "Adult Social Care precept" is an increase in Council Tax that Councils can 

raise but only if the funding is passported to Adult Social Care.  This precept is 
designed to help relieve the pressure on what is termed "the funding crisis in 

                                            
3
 The median Council Taxpayer lives in a Band B property 

4
 Tax increases will be subject to Council Tax referendum thresholds which are at this stage unknown 

Page 24



 

adult social care" which is occurring as the elderly population rises alongside 
the cost of care.   

 
5.12 The limit for the Adult Social Care (ASC) precept is determined by Central 

Government and was set at 6.0% in total for the 3 year period including this 
financial year through to 2019/20.   Having increased the Council Tax by 3% in 
2017/18 for the ASC Precept, 3% flexibility remains for the following 2 years.  A 
3.0% increase in Council Tax, phased over the next 2 years would raise £2.1m 
in total and amount to an average annual increase of £14.93 (or 29p per week).     

 
5.13 As set out in Section 6, there are a number of actual and potential cost 

pressures that either currently exist or will fall on Adult Social Care in 2018/19.  
This includes the current underlying budget deficit amounting to £1.8m as 
described in the "Revenue Budget Monitoring 2017/18 (2nd Quarter) to end 
September 2017" report contained elsewhere on this Agenda.  In addition, 
Adults Social Care will face pressures from the rising elderly population 
generally, the requirements of the Care Act and the 4.4% increase in the 
National Living Wage. The National Living Wage alone could confer an 
additional cost of circa £1.4m on the Council in 2018/19 with just £2.1m 
available from the ASC Precept over the next 2 years. 

 
  

Business Rates 2018/19 & Beyond 
 
5.14 The previous grant funding system from Government changed in 2013/14.  

Funding from Government was reduced and replaced with the ability to retain 
49% of all Business Rates collected.  Business Rates income is increased by 
inflation each year and is also influenced by the extent to which Business Rates 
income grows or contracts and the level of successful appeals against rates 
valuations.  Whilst this presents an opportunity for Local Authorities with strong 
business growth potential, it also presents risks for Authorities whose business 
rates base is in decline or subject to “shocks” such as closure (or relocation) of 
major businesses in an area.   
 

5.15 The system is complex but some of the key features are highlighted below: 
 

 For business the National Non Domestic Rates (NNDR) system will 
remain the same. Local Authorities do not have control over how the 
level of tax is determined for ratepayers 

 

 If the business rate taxbase grows the City Council will be rewarded with 
increased funding, but if it declines Council funding will reduce 

 

 It is estimated that a 1% change in Business Rates will result in circa 
£410,000 change in funding 

 

 Local Authorities that have very significant business rate growth will pay 
a levy 

 

Page 25



 

 A safety net payment will come into effect if an Authority’s income falls 
by more than 7.5% of the original baseline funding level.  

 
 

5.16 Current estimates of the City Council's share (i.e. 49%) of total Business Rates 
collected for 2017/18 is £40.0m.  For the period 2018/19 to 2020/21, the 
Council's forecasts assume no real growth but with inflationary uplifts in 
accordance with original estimates from the Office for Budget Responsibility 
(OBR).  
 

5.17 The Council has applied to become a 100% Business Rate Pilot for 2018/19 in 
a pooled arrangement with the Isle of Wight Council and Southampton City 
Council.  The outcome of the application will be announced in December 2017.  
The arrangement is one where both risks and rewards must be shared across 
all authorities.  The scheme is intended to reduce volatility in the income from 
Business Rates as well as maximise the incentive to grow the business rate 
base.  The scheme itself will include a "No Detriment" provision, meaning that 
the Council can be no worse off than under the current 49% retention system 
with its associated protections.  It does however, provide the opportunity for the 
3 Councils to retain 100% of any growth in Business Rates so long as it is used 
to: 

 
i) Promote financial stability and sustainability across the pooled area 
ii) Re-invest in promoting further growth across the area 

  
5.18 Changes to the estimated Business Rate income for the current and future 

years arising from changes to assumptions will be reflected in the 
comprehensive revision to the Council’s overall financial forecasts in February 
2018.  Any consequent implications will be reflected in the Savings 
Requirements for future years. 
 

5.19 Economic growth and job creation in the City are a key part of the Council's 
Financial Strategy.  The City Council has a key role in regenerating the city, 
working with partners to grow the local and sub-regional economy.  As 
described later in this report, growth and job creation has the dual impact of 
increasing the prosperity of residents generally which leads to a reduction in 
demand for Council services and increases Business Rates, of which 49% (or 
100%) is retained by the Council.  This allows the Council to both reduce its 
costs as well as generate additional income. 

 
5.20 In summary, the forecast funding for Local Government from Central 

Government Grant should be relatively stable and Council Tax income is also 
predictable with a reasonable degree of accuracy.  Significant uncertainty over 
the estimated income from Business Rates will remain.  Whilst a degree of 
uncertainty exists, the Council's current forecasts for 2018/19 anticipate a total 
reduction in revenue funding from Government of £3.9m5 whilst a Council Tax 
increase of 1.99% will generate £1.4m of income, a net shortfall of £2.5m 
before taking account inflationary and other cost pressures.   

                                            
5
 Based on the Baseline Funding level that includes RPI uplift on Business Rates 

Page 26



 

6 City Council Expenditure Outlook - 2018/19 & beyond 
 
Demographic Changes 

6.1 Demographic changes are likely to generate the largest cost pressures facing 

the City Council going forward.  As well as pressure caused by an ageing 

population there is also pressure caused by a "living longer" population.  More 

people are coming through the transition into Adults Social Care from 

Children's Social Care with profound physical or learning disabilities and tend to 

be at the higher end of the care spectrum, costing significant amounts of 

money.   

6.2 Additionally, the number of children in care with extremely challenging 

conditions is also increasing, causing significant increases in the number of 

expensive Out of City placements into specialist accommodation. 

6.3 The outlook therefore for the Council's essential care services is one of 

increasing volumes and therefore rising costs.  

 

Government Policy Changes / Expectations 2018/19 and Beyond 

6.4 Reforms to the welfare system are likely to result in additional demands on the 

Council's housing and essential care services.   

6.5 Such changes could also reduce the income which the Council can charge for 

providing those services.  The cumulative impact of the reforms where separate 

benefits convert to Universal Credit coupled with the change from Disability 

Living Allowance to Personal Independence Payments is likely to reduce social 

care clients' disposable income and therefore the amount they can afford to pay 

for their care. 

6.6 New care duties and responsibilities for local authorities commenced under the 

Care Act in April 2015. The Government has stated that it will fund these new 

Care Act requirements in full (either to Local Authorities directly, and potentially 

by the ability to raise Council Tax, or through the Better Care Fund of the NHS).  

6.7 The introduction of the National Living Wage from April 2017 and continuing 

increases above the rate of inflation (4.4% for 2018/19) is expected to create 

significant cost pressures for the Council particularly in Adult Social Care 

contracts.  Estimates suggest that the impact could be in the order of £1.4m per 

annum.  

 

Inflation 

6.8 In overall terms, the cost of inflation has been relatively modest in recent years, 

largely held down due to constraints on public sector pay. General inflation has 

however been on the rise over the past 12 months and is currently running at 

Page 27



 

3.0%.  The OBR has forecast that inflation (measured by the Consumer Price 

Index or CPI) will peak at or around 3.0%, falling back to 2.2% in 2018/19 and 

flattening to around 2.0% for the following 3 years. For the next 3 year period, 

the Council's current forecasts assume that inflationary costs will amount to 

£9.0m with overall composite rates for inflation (taking into account pay, 

contracts linked to the Retail Price Index (RPI), CPI generally across other 

expenditure and pension obligations) ranging between 2.6% to 3.0% over the 

period.  These assumptions will be comprehensively reviewed in February 2018 

with all of the other assumptions within the Council's medium term financial 

forecasts when they will be known with greater certainty.  

6.9 The Autumn Statement did however confer some additional cost pressures on 

the Council in relation to the uplift in the National Living Wage from £7.50 to 

£7.83 (4.4% increase) from April 2018 which will predominantly affect Adult 

Social Care contracts.  The impact of the National Living Wage increase is 

expected to amount to £1.4m. 

 

Interest Rates 

6.10 Interest rates for investments were initially forecast to range between 0.25% in 

2018/19 and rise steadily to 0.75% in 2020/21.  Expectations now are that 

interest rates will be slightly higher than originally forecast and this will have a 

positive influence on the Council's overall financial position.  This will be 

reviewed as part of the Council's comprehensive revision of its forecast in 

February 2018.  

6.11 Borrowing rates are quite volatile due to the impact of the EU Referendum 

and general geo-political developments but the general expectation is for an 

eventual trend of gently rising gilt yields and therefore borrowing rates. The 

Council is not generally in a borrowing position in the short term but may take 

modest amounts of borrowing (for future requirements) within the next 3 years 

if low rate opportunities arise. 

 

Assets / Investments 

6.12 In accordance with the Council's Medium Term Financial Strategy, the Council 

has been active in both acquiring new commercial property as a means of 

generating income to avoid cuts to Council Services and seeking to maximise 

the return from its existing property portfolio.  As part of that Strategy, Cabinet 

approved the granting of a head lease of Wightlink to Canada life with a 

subsequent leaseback.  The effect of the transaction was to receive £73m for 

the lease in return for an annual payment for 46 years to Canada Life.  The 

financial appraisal demonstrated that this was the optimal method for 

obtaining capital from the asset using a sale and leaseback structure using 

the Council's covenant strength to increase the overall return from the asset, 

Page 28



 

whilst importantly enabling the Council to retain ownership and control of this 

strategically important site in the long term. It was also tax efficient.  

6.13 Although these transactions are legally structured as leases, in substance the 

City Council has borrowed £73m from Canada Life to invest in other 

commercial properties. The effect of these transactions is to increase the City 

Council's external debt by £73m from £569m at 31 March 2017 to £642m.  

The opportunity to enter into such an arrangement was not known at the time 

the Council approved its limit for external debt and as a consequence, the limit 

was exceeded by £24m.  The effect of this "borrowing" has flowed through 

into 2017/18 and accordingly it is recommended that the authorised limit for 

external debt for 2017/18 be increased by £45m to £653m in order to provide 

the Council some flexibility to undertake further borrowing, including short 

term borrowing for liquidity purposes if necessary.   

6.14 In overall terms, the effect of this arrangement has been to increase the 

income from this asset by circa £2.4m per annum in the future steady state. 

 
Summary 
 

6.15  All of the demographic, legislative and other cost changes will be taken into 

account in the comprehensive revision to the Council’s overall financial 

forecasts in February 2018.  Any consequent implications will be reflected in 

revisions to both the proposed savings (Appendix B) and the Savings 

Requirements for future years. 

 

  

Page 29



 

7. Overall Financial Forecast - 2018/19 to 2020/21 (Existing 

Forecast) 

 

Overall 3 Year Financial Forecast 

6.16 In overall terms, taking account of both spending pressures and funding 

reductions over the next three financial years, it is forecast that the Council 

faces an overall deficit of £12m.  This means that by 2020/21, the Council's 

net expenditure will need to be £12m less that it is at present and that savings 

of that sum will need to be made either through increased income or reduced 

costs.  This will be reviewed as part of the comprehensive revision to the 

Council’s overall financial forecasts in February 2018.  

6.17 An illustration of the factors causing the forecast £12m deficit as described in 

Sections 5 & 6 is shown below: 

 

 

 
Savings Requirement for 2018/19 & Forecast Savings Requirements for 
2019/20 and 2020/21 
 

6.18 The last comprehensive review of the City Council’s 3 Year Financial Forecast 
was reported in the Annual Budget Report in February 2017.  This set out the 

Page 30



 

City Council’s underlying budget deficit and consequent forecast Budget 
Savings Requirement for the next 3 years as follows: 
 
 Underlying 

Budget 
Deficit 

 
£m 

Annual Budget 
Savings 

Requirement 
 

£m 

Total 
Savings 

Requirement 
 

£m 
2018/19 3.9 4.0 4.0 

2019/20 8.9 4.0 8.0 
2020/21 11.4 4.0 12.0 

 
6.19 On the basis of the overall £12m deficit and the preference to be able to 

manage those savings smoothly over that period, the City Council resolved in 
February 2017 that a minimum savings requirement of £4.0m would be 
implemented for 2018/19.  That minimum savings requirement was predicated 
on a Council Tax increase of 1.99% for general purposes (generating £1.4m of 
additional Council Tax income).  It also assumed that a further 3.0% increase 
in Council Tax for the ASC Precept would be raised over the period 2018/19 
and 2019/20 (generating £2.1m of additional Council Tax income).   
 

6.20 The Council is aware of a number of potential changes to the assumptions 
underpinning these forecasts and will also be undertaking the usual review of 
the estimates of Council Tax and Business Rates income in early January 
2018, this means that a comprehensive revision at this stage would be 
premature and subject to potential significant change. 
 

6.21 The Director of Finance & IS (S151 Officer) advises that whilst it is likely that 
the overall financial forecasts will change, the savings requirement for 2018/19 
at £4.0m (with a Council Tax increase of 1.99% for general purposes and a 
Council Tax increase for the ASC Precept of 3.0% over the period 2018/19 and 
2019/20) remains robust and prudent.  Given what is known, or reasonably 
expected, regarding future funding reductions and given future uncertainties, a 
savings requirement of less than these sums would not be prudent.   
 
 

  

Page 31



 

8. Medium Term Financial Strategy - 2018/19 & Beyond 
 
Financial Strategy 2018/19 & Beyond 
 

8.1 In overall terms, the financial picture over the next 3 years and beyond is one of 
increasing costs and demand for services, particularly in essential care 
services, at the same time as continued and unprecedented reductions in 
funding.  Taking all of the cost and funding implications into account, the 
Council's forecasts prepared in February 2017 estimated that the Council will 
need to make £12m of savings over the next 3 years. 
 

8.2 Considering also that those essential care services consume 53% of the 
Council's net controllable budget, the Council is faced with a position where it 
not only has to meet those costs, or at the very least manage the demand for 
those services, but simultaneously find £12m of savings across all areas.  This 
is illustrated below: 

 
 
 

 
 

Health & Social 
Care 
35% 

Childrens' Services 
18% 

Resources 
14% 

Traffic & 
Transportation 

11% 

Environment & 
Community Safety 

11% Culture, Leisure & 
Sport 

5% 

Education 
4% 

Housing 
2% 

2017/18 Net Controllable Expenditure of £118m 

Page 32



 

8.3 It is also of significance that a further 22% of the Council's controllable spend is 
consumed by the Traffic & Transportation and Environment & Community 
Safety Portfolios where a large proportion of their activities are tied into long-
term contracts where the savings potential is more limited. 
 

8.4 The Council's Medium Term Financial Strategy has been developed to respond 
to these very challenging circumstances. The Strategy has a strong 
regeneration focus with a presumption that Capital investment will be targeted 
towards economic growth.  This is to improve the prosperity of the City through 
employment as an objective in itself but also because this will reduce the 
demand for Council services generally.  Furthermore, re-generation creates the 
opportunity for additional business rates to be generated and retained by the 
Council.  The Capital Programme can also be a vehicle for Invest to Save 
schemes enabling the Council to reduce its own costs in the future.    
 

8.5 Equally prominent in the strategy below is the strong focus on entrepreneurial 
activities leading to income generation as a means to make savings and avoid 
cuts to services.    
 

8.6 The Strategy is illustrated overleaf: 

Page 33



 

OVERALL AIM 
 

"In year" expenditure matches "in year" 
income over the medium term whilst 

continuing the drive towards regeneration of 
the City, being entrepreneurial and 

protecting the most important and valued 
services 

STRAND 1 
 

Transforming to an Entrepreneurial Council: 

 Income Generation 

 Maximise the return on Property and Assets 

 Invest for commercial gain 

 Develop and establish commercial entities to sell services profitably  
 Capital investment for jobs and business growth (increased Business Rates) 

 Establishing strategic partnerships / share service arrangements to reduce costs 
and increase resilience 

STRAND 2 
 

Reduce the extent to which the population needs Council Services 

 Re-direction of resources towards preventative services (avoid greater 
costs downstream) 

 Design fees & charges policies to distinguish between want and need 

 Capital investment towards jobs and skills to raise prosperity 

STRAND 3 
 

Increase the efficiency & effectiveness of the Council's activity: 

 Contract reviews 

 Rationalisation of operational buildings 

 Support to the Voluntary Sector 

 Targeted efficiency reviews in "resource hungry" services 

 Capital investment for on-going savings or cost avoidance 

STRAND 4 
 

Withdraw or offer minimal provision of low impact Services: 

 Strong focus on needs, priorities on outcomes 

 Use the insights of Councillors to inform priorities 

 Use the results of public consultation to inform priorities 
 

Page 34



 

The Strategy is underpinned by a financial framework which provides financial 
autonomy to Portfolios and Committees.  Any underspending arising against 
their budgets are retained by them.  This was deliberately designed to create 
the financial conditions that support responsible spending and promote 
forward financial planning.  The implication of this is that the opportunity for 
future underspendings to accrue and be available corporately is much 
reduced.  It is vitally important therefore that the use of any corporate 
underspends is used wisely and in accordance with the Council's Medium 
Term Financial Strategy aimed at meeting the future financial challenges of 
the Council.  
 

8.7 The MTRS Reserve is a fundamental component of the Council's financial 
framework and is designed to provide funding for future redundancies, Spend 
to Save and Invest to Save initiatives.  The current uncommitted balance on 
the MTRS Reserve amounts to £2.5m and is considered to be very modest in 
the context of the £12m of savings that the Council is required to make over 
the next 3 years.  

 
 

9 Budget Process & Consultation 2018/19 
 

9.1 During October and November of this year, the Council undertook a Budget 
consultation to understand residents spending priorities.  Budget consultations 
in previous years agreed that income generation should be pursued as an 
alternative to cuts, that joint working was welcomed and that services to 
vulnerable adults and children should be protected.  Due to the larger scale of 
Revenue savings required in previous years, Budget Consultations have 
focussed on where the Council should be making savings. The Budget 
Consultation this year has been extended to also cover the Council's Capital 
Investment priorities. 
 

9.2 The consultation was city wide and took the form of a questionnaire which was 
also supplemented by a series of public meetings with residents, staff and the 
business community. 
 

9.3 The final response rate from the consultation was as follows: 
 

Residents       937 
Staff          631 
Citizen's Panel        121 
Total    1,689 

 
9.4 The response rates are distributed throughout the city and provide a varied set 

of responses. As was the case last year, three of our key MOSAIC groups 
across the city - Rental Hubs, Transient Renters and Aspiring Homemakers are 
over-represented in the sample, although the order and significance has 
changed. Urban Cohesion and Domestic Success are also over-represented 
this year while Municipal Challenge has dropped down to a level more 
proportional with the city split. Significantly under-represented groups include 
Suburban stability and Family basics. Suburban stability is generally 

Page 35



 

representative of comfortable families, while Family basics are generally 
families struggling to make ends meet in social housing 
 

9.5 Given the response volume, the results can be considered to be statistically 
robust with a margin of error of 2% based on a 95% confidence rate. 

 
9.6 Overall, whether a staff member or a resident, respondents for the most part 

agreed with the overall management strategy for the budget.  The main 
conclusions were: 

 

 Over 67% think it is important for the council to invest in improving city 
centre roads 

 Over 77% think it is important for the council to invest additional money to 
enhance the flood defences scheme 

 Over 85% think it is important to invest in our secondary schools to make 
sure there are enough places for all young people  

 Over 77% think it is important to invest in roads, pavements and cycle 
ways  

 Over 74% think it is important to invest in culture, leisure centres and 
parks  

 In terms of services that residents value overall, the following received the 
most votes: 

 
1. Rubbish and Recycling (855 respondents)  

2. Children's Social Care (660 respondents)  

3. Adult Social Care (627 respondents)  

4. Maintenance and Seafront (566 respondents)  
 

 73% of respondents indicated that they would accept a council tax 
increase of 2% or more (with the largest category of residents indicating 
that they would accept a 4% increase).  

 50% of respondents indicated they would support an additional increase 
to support vulnerable residents.  

 Only 12% of respondents indicated that they felt there should be NO 
increase in council tax.  

 
   

9.7 The full results of the Budget Consultation can be found at:  
 
https://www.portsmouth.gov.uk/ext/the-council/transparency/budget-2018-2019 

 
9.8 These results have been fully considered by the Administration in formulating 

their budget savings proposals described in Section 10 below. 
 
 

  

Page 36

https://www.portsmouth.gov.uk/ext/the-council/transparency/budget-2018-2019


 

10 Budget Proposals for 2018/19 to 2020/21 
 

 
Budget Savings Proposals 2018/19 

 
10.1 The Administration's budget savings proposals are aligned with the Medium 

Term Financial Strategy previously described in Section 8 and have been 
prepared paying due regard to the responses from the Budget Consultation 
set out in Section 9 as well as the Administration's strategic priorities.  The 
proposed savings amounts to be made by each Portfolio, and which are 
recommended for approval, are attached at Appendix A.   

 
10.2 The Administration's proposals are focussed on an "Avoidance to Cuts" 

approach in line with the Medium Term Financial Strategy.  In overall terms, 
the proposed £4m of savings are characterised as follows: 
 

Description of Saving Savings 

Efficiency Savings (little or no reduction in Services) £2.4m 60% 

Additional Income  £1.4m 36% 

Service Reduction £0.2m 4% 

Total £4.0m 100% 

 
10.3 For 2018/19, Efficiency Savings account for 60% of the proposed savings, 

with 36% relating to Additional Income and just 4% Service Reduction 
measures.   
 

10.4 Noting also the response from the Budget Consultation which generally 
suggests that services to the vulnerable should receive some measure of 
protection, the Administration's savings proposals provide full protection from 
savings for Children's Social Care and significant protection from savings for 
Adult Social Care.  As a necessary consequence, savings from other 
Portfolios are proportionally higher and significantly higher in some cases 
such as Planning Regeneration & Economic Development and Other 
Expenditure.   
 

  

Page 37



 

10.5 A summary of the overall savings proposals for 2018/19, by Portfolio, is set 
out below. 
 
 

Portfolio / Committee Savings Proposal 

£ 
% 

Budget 

Children's Social Care 0 0.0% 

Culture, Leisure & Sport 277,300 2.8% 

Education 180,000 2.8% 

Environment & Community Safety 150,000 0.9% 

Health & Social Care - Adults Social Care 860,600 1.6% 

Health & Social Care - Public Health 236,000 1.9% 

Housing 109,000 2.1% 

Planning, Regeneration & Economic Development 815,100 9.8% 

Resources 798,000 2.5% 

Traffic & Transportation 305,000 2.3% 

Other Expenditure (incl. Debt Repayment) 269,000 6.5% 

Grand Total 4,000,000 2.1% 

 
* Excludes the additional funding passported through the Adult Social Care Precept 
and additional funding for the Care Act meaning that in cash terms there is a zero 
reduction to Adult Social Care 

 
10.6 The analysis above highlights the conundrum that the Council faces regarding 

the desire to protect both Adults and Children's Social Care whilst still wishing 
to retain good quality sustainable public services in its other portfolios.  By 
way of example, the average saving required across the Council was 2.1% of 
spending but to fully protect Children's Social Care (at 0.0% budget 
reductions) and Health & Social Care - Adult Social Care (at 1.6% budget 
reductions), it has been necessary to make spending reductions / additional 
income in other valued Portfolios of up to 9.8%. 

 
10.7 Inevitably, there are a number of financial risks contained within the proposals 

for making savings of the scale of £4m (or 2.1%) on the back of making £94m 
in savings and efficiencies over the past 7 years.  The risks are unavoidable.  
For those risks with the highest likely impact, mitigation strategies are being 
developed.  In previous years, the highest risks have been to the delivery of 
the savings within the essential care services and whilst these still remain, 
they have generally been managed by making some contingency provision on 
a "one-off" basis in order to provide additional time to re-design service 
provision. 
 

10.8 Looking forward to 2018/19, there still remain risks in both Children's and 
Adults Social Care.  Whilst the Council is forecasting a balanced budget in the 
current year, there remain underlying deficits totalling £3.6m in these two 
Services of £1.8m (Children's Social Care) and £1.8m (Adults Social Care).   
 

10.9 For Children's Social Care, a plan is in place to reduce that deficit which 
focusses on increasing the number of Social Workers to provide more 

Page 38



 

targeted and intensive support as a mechanism to reduce the number of 
Looked After Children in the system alongside plans to reduce the number of 
Children in expensive Out of City residential placements.  Additionally, no 
savings are proposed from Children's Social Care for 2018/19 whilst the deficit 
reduction measures are in place.  
 

10.10 For Adults Social Care (ASC), the funding received via the ASC Precept and 
the transformation initiatives funded by the improved Better Care Fund 
Allocation (amounting to £7.8m for the period 2017/18 to 2019/20) is planned 
to be used to remedy the underlying deficit and meet the demographic cost 
pressures facing the service. 
 

10.11 The measures described above are being planned in order to eliminate these 
deficits and place their budgets on a sound footing for 2018/19.  Nevertheless, 
risks to delivery will remain and the Council will need to ensure that adequate 
contingency provision is made to cover that eventuality. 

  
10.12 It is important to note that the Council's responsibility is to set the overall 

Budget of the Council and determine the cash limits for each Portfolio.  It is 
not the responsibility of the Council to approve the detailed savings that need 
to be made in order for the Portfolio to meet its cash limit.  The Council do 
need to have the confidence that the recommended savings for each Portfolio 
are deliverable and what the likely impact of delivering those savings might 
be.  Indicative savings that are likely to be necessary in delivering the overall 
Portfolio savings are attached at Appendix B and whilst the detailed savings 
are not a matter for the Council to decide, they are presented to inform the 
decision of Council relating to the overall savings to be made by each Portfolio 
/ Committee. 

 
10.13 To provide the best opportunity to achieve full year savings and deliver the 

£4m Savings Requirement, it would be prudent and financially responsible for 
the Council to seek to implement its 2018/19 savings as early as possible. 
From the perspective of service delivery, giving partners and residents 
significant advance notice of the changes to come into effect from next April 
will assist them to plan for change accordingly. 

 
10.14 A crucial part of a prudent financial strategy is to maintain strong financial 

resilience.  That means maintaining adequate levels of reserves to be able to 
respond to "financial shocks" or having reserves available to help implement 
savings in a planned and managed way.  The early (or timely) implementation 
of savings proposals ensures that those reserves remain intact and are 
available for such purposes. 

 
10.15 In order for the City Council to be able to implement the Savings Requirement 

in good time, a number of savings proposals will require that consultation take 
place and notice periods be given.  Should the Portfolio savings set out in 
Appendix A be approved, Managers will commence the implementation of 
those savings and any consultation process or notice process necessary. 

 

Page 39



 

10.16 For savings proposals that require consultation, the actual method of 
implementation or their distributional effect will not be determined until the 
results of consultation have been fully considered.  Following consultation, the 
relevant Portfolio Holder may alter, amend or substitute any of the indicative 
savings proposal(s) set out in Appendix B with alternative proposal(s) 
amounting to the same value. 

 
 
Budget Pressures Proposals 2018/19 

 
10.17 The Council no longer makes any general provision for Budget Pressures.  

This was agreed as part of the Medium Term Financial Strategy approved by 
the City Council in November 2013.   

 
10.18 One of the aims of the Medium Term Financial Strategy is to create the 

conditions that incentivise responsible spending and strong forward financial 
planning.   As a consequence, a financial framework was implemented which 
provides Services with much greater financial autonomy. 
 

10.19 The features of the financial framework include: 
 

i) Each Portfolio to retain 100% of any year-end underspending and it to be 
held in an earmarked reserve for the relevant Portfolio 

ii) The Portfolio Holder be responsible for approving any releases from their 
earmarked reserve in consultation with the Director of Finance & 
Information Services (S151 Officer) 

iii) That any retained underspend (held in an earmarked reserve) be used in 
the first instance to cover the following for the relevant Portfolio: 

a) Any overspendings at the year-end 

b) Any one-off Budget Pressures experienced by a Portfolio 

c) Any on-going Budget Pressures experienced by a Portfolio  whilst 
actions are formulated to permanently mitigate or manage the 
implications of such on-going budget pressures 

d) Any items of a contingent nature that would historically have been 
funded from the Council's corporate contingency provision 

e) Spend to Save schemes, unless they are of a scale that is 
unaffordable by the earmarked reserve (albeit that the earmarked 
reserve may be used to make a contribution) 

Once there is confidence that the instances in a) to e) can be satisfied, the 
earmarked reserve may be used for other developments or initiatives 

 
10.20 Correspondingly, any Budget Pressures must be funded within the overall 

resources available to the Portfolio Holder (which includes their Portfolio 
Reserve).   
 

Page 40



 

10.21 Whilst no general provision exists for Budget Pressures, the Budget proposals 
do provide for the passporting of the Adult Social Care Precept to Adult Social 
Care as well as additional funding received to meet the new burdens 
associated with the implementation of the Care Act. 
 
Medium Term Resource Strategy Reserve - Position 
 

10.22 The Medium Term Resource Strategy Reserve (MTRS Reserve) is a reserve 
maintained by the Council for Spend to Save, Spend to Avoid Cost and Invest 
to Save Schemes.  It is also the reserve that funds all redundancy costs 
arising from Budget Savings proposals.  At present the reserve has an 
uncommitted balance of £2.5m. 
 

10.23 An uncommitted balance on the MTRS Reserve of £2.5m is considered to be 
very modest in the context of the £12m of savings that the Council is required 
to make over the next 3 years.  As the Council's primary vehicle for providing 
funding for Spend to Save initiatives, it is crucial that this fund is both spent 
wisely and replenished at every opportunity. 
 
 
Proposals for the Voluntary Sector Capacity & Transition Fund 
 
 

10.24 The Voluntary Sector Capacity & Transition Fund was established to secure 
sustainable voluntary sector services in the future as a means to sustain or 
improve Council services, avoid cost and / or make savings.  There is an 
emphasis on the fund to build capacity across the sector in a sustainable way.  
The criteria for the use of the fund are: 
 

 Overall fit with the Council's objectives - providing services consistent 
with the Council's responsibilities that are not replicated elsewhere 

 Integration and/or collaboration with other voluntary sector partners - 
demonstrating a willingness to transform and build voluntary sector 
capacity on a sustainable basis 

 Deliverability - proposals are costed robustly and plans demonstrate 
that they can be confidently delivered 

 Sustainability - a single application for a 1 year, 2 year or 3 year award 
which demonstrates an operating model that will endure without further 
funding from the Council 

 Cost Avoidance - illustration of how the proposal avoids costs 
elsewhere "in the system" and / or improves the integration and 
efficiency of the voluntary sector as a whole 

 Potential for further Transformation - the extent to which the proposal 
could drive further transformation and capacity of the voluntary sector 
in the future  

 Wider economic impacts   
 
 

10.25 The use of the Fund in 2017/18 and its expected outcomes are anticipated to 
be successful in delivering better services and either avoiding or reducing 

Page 41



 

cost.  Considering both the awarded and earmarked sums, it is now almost 
fully subscribed and has been used to fund the following: 
 

 
 

10.26 Based on its anticipated success, the Administration propose to make a 
further transfer from the MTRS Reserve of £500,000 to continue to support 
the development of the Voluntary Sector.  In making this transfer, the 
Administration will be seeking to encourage and incentivise innovation 
between the Council and the Sector for the next round of applications 
 

  

Project (Awarded 
Funding) 

Lead 
Organisations 

Purpose 
Grant 
Award 

Re-unification Pilot 
Motiv8, 
Barnardos, 
Home Start 

Pilot of intensive bespoke work with 
families to keep children within 
family unit - saving significant costs 
of care 

£25,000 

Reunification Full project 
Motiv8, 
Barnardos, 
Home Start 

Moving pilot (as above) to fuller 
service  

£50,000 

Portsmouth Counselling 
reconfiguration 

You Trust 
To provide counselling services as 
Portsmouth Counselling Service 
ceased 

£50,000 

Edge of Care Motiv8  
Intensive support in families for older 
children - saving significant cost of 
on-going care and placements 

£50,000 

Dadz Club Public Health 

To set up a mentoring , support 
network around the role of fathers, 
linking into families and mental 
health 

£70,000 

Mental Health Café 
Good Mental 
Health Co-
operative 

To provide safe space and support 
and training for mental health  

£57,886 

Total Awarded     £302,886 

    
Project (Earmarked 
Funding) 

Lead 
Organisations 

Purpose 
Earmarked 

Funds 

Reunification (continuation 
- see above) 

Motiv8, 
Barnardos, 
Home Start 

As above but award dependent on 
satisfactory outcomes 

£50,000 

Edge of Care (continuation 
- see above) 

Motiv8  
As above but award dependent on 
satisfactory outcomes 

£50,000 

Total Earmarked     £100,000 

    Total Grants Awarded / Earmarked   £402,886 

Page 42



 

Approval of the Budget 2018/19 
 

10.27 At the 13th February 2018 Council meeting, a comprehensive revision of the 
Council's future forecasts will be presented.  This will revise all of the key 
assumptions set out below as well as extending the forecast to cover an 
additional year (2021/22) in order to maintain a rolling 3 year plus current year 
financial forecast.   

 
10.28 The Budget 2018/19 presented to the City Council for approval will be 

prepared on the basis of the proposals for savings and Council Tax set out in 
this report.  It will also include the outcome of the following: 

 

 The Local Government Finance Settlement for 2018/19 

 The final estimate of the Council Tax yield (based on the determination of 
the Council Taxbase) 

 The final estimate of the Business Rate yield 

 Any necessary inflationary uplifts 

 Changes in regulations 

 Final estimates of all items outside of cash limits including capital charges, 
support service charges, insurance, pension costs, contingency, 
borrowing costs, investment income, levies and precepts 

 Any necessary virements across Portfolios to reflect changes in 
responsibilities. 

 

11 Conclusion   
 

11.1 The City Council continues to face the challenge of significant funding 
reductions but compounded by increasing cost pressures, most of which are 
driven largely by demographic pressures in the essential care services.  
Inflation more generally is at levels not seen for some time.  Taken together, 
this requires the Council to make savings and/or increase income by £12m over 
the next 3 years (assuming a Council Tax increase of 1.99% in each and every 
year plus an increase of 3.0% for the ASC Precept over the period 2018/19 to 
2019/20).   
 

11.2 The first tranche of these savings amounting to £4m for 2018/19 have been 
developed in accordance with the Council's Medium Term Financial Strategy 
and with regard to the Budget Consultation recently completed.  The overall 
strategy focusses on the avoidance of cuts with an emphasis on: 
 

 Entrepreneurial activities such as maximising returns from property and 
assets and other income generation measures 

 Increasing the efficiency and effectiveness of the Council's services 

 Reducing the extent to which the population needs Council services 
(through prevention activities and regeneration activities) 
 

Page 43



 

Given the speed at which savings need to be made, it is inevitable that some 
cuts are required.  These cuts, amounting to just 4% of the total savings 
required, have been informed by the budget consultation exercise and have 
been proposed on the basis that they are in the areas of least impact. 
 

11.3 Before the £4m of savings proposals set out within this report, the cumulative 
savings of the Council over the austerity period from 2011/12 amounts to £94m.  
The impact that this has had on spending levels of Portfolios over that same 
period is illustrated below (Blue segment illustrates level of spending that 
remains, red segment is the level of spending which has been removed).  The 
chart illustrates those services that have received relative protection from 
spending reductions (left hand side) and those services that have provided the 
compensation by making relatively higher spending reductions (right hand 
side). 

 
11.4 The chart demonstrates that Services such as Children & Education, Health & 

Social Care and Environment & Community Safety have received the most 
protection from funding reductions and significantly more than "back office" 
services.  This theme is continued through the Budget savings proposed for 
2018/19 with those exact same services making the lowest savings as follows 
compared to the average saving of 2.1%: 
 

 Children's Social Care - 0.0%   

 Environment & Community Safety - 0.9% 

 Health & Social Care - Adult Social Care - 1.6% 

Page 44



 

11.5 Looking forward beyond 2018/19 still with significant savings to be made, to 
avoid significant cuts to Services, the Council will need to continue to focus its 
strategy on entrepreneurial activities and regeneration.  
 

11.6 It is clear that unless savings can be made through additional income or 
additional funding from Business Rates and Council Tax arising from 
investment in regeneration, the burden of those savings will be required from 
efficiencies and service reductions.  Inevitably, given the size of the savings 
required and the proportion of spending consumed by the Care Services, the 
Council will no longer be able to afford the same levels of protection that have 
been provided in the past for its Children's Social Care, Adults Social Care 
and Environment and Community Safety services without very severe cuts to 
all other Services. 
 

11.7 Approval for the savings proposals is recommended at this early stage in 
order to achieve full year savings and avoid greater and deeper cuts 
associated with any delay.  In terms of service delivery and planning, it is 
equally important to provide partners and residents significant advance notice 
of the changes to come into effect in order to assist them to plan for change 
accordingly. 

 
11.8 This report is the pre-cursor to the Annual Budget and Council Tax Setting 

meeting to be held on the 13th February 2018 where the Council will be 
requested to formally approve the Budget for 2018/19 and the associated 
Council Tax for the year.  Should the savings proposals contained within this 
report be approved, they will form the basis of the Budget 2018/19 presented 
to Council in February 2018.  That report will also include a comprehensive 
revision of the Council's future forecasts and set the consequent future 
savings requirements for the period 2019/20 to 2021/22. 

 
11.9 Finally, the proposals within this report will maintain the Council's financial 

health and resilience and therefore its ability to respond in a measured and 
proportionate way to any "financial shocks" by having adequate reserves and 
contingencies available for a Council of this size and risk profile. 

 
 

12 Equality Impact Assessment (EIA) 
 
12.1 The Portfolio / Committee savings amounts proposed within this report will 

inevitably impact on service provision.  Appendix B describes the indicative 
savings that might (or are likely) to be made in order to achieve the proposed 
savings amounts.  Whilst some are likely to be implemented, there will be 
others that require consultation and appropriate Equality Impact Assessments 
to be considered before any implementation can take place.  For this reason, 
any savings proposal set out in Appendix B can be altered, amended or 
substituted with an alternative proposal following appropriate consultation.  
 

12.2 A city-wide budget consultation took place during October and November to 
help inform how to make £12m of savings over the next 3 years.  The 

Page 45



 

consultation took the form of a questionnaire which was also supplemented by 
a public meeting with residents, a public meeting with the business community 
and a meeting with staff and unions.  

 

13 City Solicitor’s Comments 
 
13.1 The Cabinet has a legal responsibility to recommend a Budget to the Council 

and the Cabinet and Council have authority to approve the recommendations 
made in this report.  
 
 

14 Director of Finance's Comments 
 
14.1 All of the necessary financial information required to approve the 

recommendations is reflected in the body of the report and the Appendices.  
 
 
 
…………………………………………… 
Signed by: Director of Finance & Information Services (Section 151 Officer) 
 
Appendices: 
 

A Recommended Portfolio / Committee Savings 2018/19 
 

B Indicative Savings Proposals 2018/19 

 
Background list of documents: Section 100D of the Local Government Act 
1972 
 
The following documents disclose facts or matters, which have been relied upon to a 
material extent by the author in preparing this report: 
 

Title of document Location 

Budget Working Papers 
 

Director of Finance & Information Services 
(S151 Officer) 

Local Government Finance Settlement 
2016/17 
 

Director of Finance & Information Services 
(S151 Officer) 

 
The recommendation(s) set out above were approved/ approved as amended/ 
deferred/ rejected by the City Council on 12th December 2017. 
 
 
 
……………………………………………… 
Signed by: Leader of Portsmouth City Council  

Page 46



 

APPENDIX A 
 

 

PROPOSED BUDGET SAVINGS AMOUNTS 2018/19 BY PORTFOLIO 

              

              

  

Portfolio   
 

Saving 2018/19 

 

Saving 2019/20 

 

Saving 2020/21 

     
  

 
£ % 

 

£ % 
 

£ % 

     
  

     
 

    
 

    

  Children's Social Care   
 

0 0.0% 

 

0 0.0% 

 

0 0.0% 

  Culture, Leisure and Sport    277,300 2.8% 

 

277,300 2.8% 

 

277,300 2.8% 

  Education    180,000 2.8% 

 

180,000 2.8% 

 

180,000 2.8% 

  Environment and Community Safety    150,000 0.9% 

 

150,000 0.9% 

 

150,000 0.9% 

  Health and Social Care - Adult Social Care    860,600 1.6% 

 

860,600 1.6% 

 

860,600 1.6% 

  Health and Social Care - Public Health    236,000 1.9% 

 

236,000 1.9% 

 

236,000 1.9% 

  Housing 
 

   109,000 2.1% 

 

109,000 2.1% 

 

109,000 2.1% 

  Planning Regeneration and Economic Development    815,100 9.8% 

 

815,100 9.8% 

 

815,100 9.8% 

  Resources    798,000 2.5% 

 

798,000 2.5% 

 

798,000 2.5% 

  Traffic and Transportation    305,000 2.3% 

 

305,000 2.3% 

 

305,000 2.3% 

  Other Expenditure    269,000 6.5% 

 

269,000 6.5% 

 

269,000 6.5% 

  Grand Total    4,000,000 2.10% 

 

4,000,000 2.10% 

 

4,000,000 2.10% 

          
 

    

 

    

 

    

P
age 47



T
his page is intentionally left blank



Saving 

2018/19

£

Saving 

2019/20

£

Saving 

2020/21

£

Culture, Leisure and Sport Portfolio

Director of Culture & City Development

001 Reduce annual revenue grant to Peter Ashley Activity Centre The organisation's restructured format and potential capacity to generate income would 

offset the reduction in funding

3,500 3,500 3,500

002 Reduction in revenue grant to the Kings Theatre, reducing to £48,000 in 2018/19 This reduction could be offset by the income generated from the 3 front shop areas.  

The decorating and updating works for one of these has been funded by the City 

Council

14,300 14,300 14,300

003 Historic underspending on Grants to Local Organisations No impact - Avoids cuts to services 5,000 5,000 5,000

004 Reduce annual revenue grant to Portsmouth Table Tennis Club Reduced capability to facilitate workshops and tournaments 500 500 500

005 Income received from BH Live for management of the leisure facilities contract No impact - Avoids cuts to services 120,000 120,000 120,000

006 Introduction of a more flexible golf membership package and works to the course to 

reduce maintenance costs

Revised membership package has already been introduced 14,000 14,000 14,000

007 Reduction in grants to Buckland, Fratton and Paulsgrove Community Centres Significant reserves are held by these organisations 8,000 8,000 8,000

008 Reduction in administration budget No impact - Avoids cuts to services 2,000 2,000 2,000

009 Increase sun hut income using flexible pricing for weekly hires and increased income 

from charging for fridges

No impact - Avoids cuts to services 7,500 7,500 7,500

010 Increased income from seafront poster sites No impact - Avoids cuts to services 3,000 3,000 3,000

011 Phased transfer of sports pitch attendants role to football clubs No impact - Avoids cuts to services 5,000 5,000 5,000

012 Guildhall reduction in revenue grant support The trust has been running the Guildhall site for six years, is well established as a 

business and has numerous routes it can use to increase income to mitigate this 

reduction

50,000 50,000 50,000

Indicative Savings Proposal

Appendix B

INDICATIVE BUDGET SAVINGS 2018/19

P
age 49



Saving 

2018/19

£

Saving 

2019/20

£

Saving 

2020/21

£

Indicative Savings Proposal

Appendix B

INDICATIVE BUDGET SAVINGS 2018/19

013 Parks Service review Reduced capacity to deal with day to day ad hoc enquiries from the public and 

assistance to voluntary groups

37,500 37,500 37,500

014 Additional Licence Fee Income for the Guildhall Square No impact - Avoids cuts to services 7,000 7,000 7,000

Culture, Leisure and Sport Total 277,300 277,300 277,300

Education

Deputy Director - Education

015 Recharge to the Dedicated Schools Grant (DSG) to cover the full cost of the 

Admissions Service

No impact - The DSG has been reviewed by central government and a new Central 

School Services Block created. As a result Portsmouth's allocation for 2018/19 is 

£20,000 more than the equivalent funding in 2017/18

20,000 20,000 20,000

016 To use the Looked After Children Pupil Premium Grant to cover the cost of the Deputy 

Head of the Virtual School 

Secures funding for the Deputy Head post of the virtual school. The Pupil Premium 

Grant is already used to cover three other posts (case workers) in the Virtual School 

Team

45,000 45,000 45,000

017 Reduction in the expenditure on services to provide the short breaks offer The proposed reduction will be delivered through a re-tendering of the service (all of the 

current contracts end on 31st March 2018). The revised contract will be designed to 

maximise access to holiday provision by children with disabilities within the funding 

available

45,000 45,000 45,000

018 Reduction in the Portsmouth Education Partnership and  School Improvement budgets As schools transfer to academies, costs associated with school improvement become 

the responsibility of the academy. As a consequence council spending in this area is 

reducing as more academies become responsible for the cost of school improvement  

70,000 70,000 70,000

Education Total 180,000 180,000 180,000

Environment and Community Safety

Director of Property & Housing Services

019 Waste Disposal Contract - reduction in  tripartite contractor payments No adverse impact to services 150,000 150,000 150,000

Environment and Community Safety Total 150,000 150,000 150,000

P
age 50



Saving 

2018/19

£

Saving 

2019/20

£

Saving 

2020/21

£

Indicative Savings Proposal

Appendix B

INDICATIVE BUDGET SAVINGS 2018/19

Health and Social Care

Director of Adult Services

020 Direct Payments to be delivered only using prepaid cards.  This reduces the risk of 

fraudulent spend, allows for the recovery of surpluses and greater control over the 

expenditure being incurred

Full year financial impact of saving implemented in 2017/18 25,000 25,000 25,000

021 Review of the Carers Service - To include staffing, accommodation and service options Full year financial impact of saving implemented in 2017/18 39,000 39,000 39,000

022 Review of high cost Older Persons and Physical Disability Packages of care cases Full year financial impact of saving implemented in 2017/18 100,000 100,000 100,000

023 Learning Disability Housing and Support redesign This will increase independence, reduce night time cover and enable the introduction of 

a Key Ring model of support

150,000 150,000 150,000

024 Lower requirement for Older Persons/Physical Disability administration following 

process review

No impact - Avoids cuts to services 22,500 22,500 22,500

025 More representative sharing of the Community Equipment Store operational costs 

between the City Council and the Clinical Commissioning Group

No impact - Avoids cuts to services 174,000 174,000 174,000

026 Reduction in Software & Hardware Costs No impact - Avoids cuts to services 66,400 66,400 66,400

027 Progression and deployment of Adult Social Care transformation projects: Assistive 

technology (e.g. Just checking)

The service user will still receive the care and support that they require although it 

might be delivered in a different way

100,000 100,000 100,000

028 Progression and deployment of Adult Social Care transformation projects: Domiciliary 

care (Medically Fit For Discharge, Rapid response domiciliary care, in-house service, 

single handed domiciliary care)

The service user will still receive the care and support that they need, although it may 

be funded differently or delivered in a different way

75,000 75,000 75,000

029 Progression and deployment of various Adult Social Care transformation projects e.g. 

Discharge to Assess (D2A)  pathway

The service user will still receive the care and support that they need, although it may 

be funded differently or delivered in a different way

22,200 22,200 22,200

030 Introduce Administration Fee for full cost clients No impact - Avoids cuts to services 25,000 25,000 25,000

031 Provide parking facilities at Edinburgh House No impact - Avoids cuts to services 14,000 14,000 14,000

032 Reconfiguration of eye clinic No impact - service users will still receive the care that they need 7,500 7,500 7,500

033 Reduction in licensing costs following discontinuing the use of care package 

assessment software

The service user will still receive the care and support they need 40,000 40,000 40,000

P
age 51



Saving 

2018/19

£

Saving 

2019/20

£

Saving 

2020/21

£

Indicative Savings Proposal

Appendix B

INDICATIVE BUDGET SAVINGS 2018/19

Director of Public Health

034 Review of the Wellbeing Service The ongoing systems thinking review has highlighted opportunities for this service to 

work more efficiently. The ambition of the service is to create a city wide change in 

lifestyle behaviours with provision being targeted to those with the most significant 

needs. Work on channel shift will seek to improve the efficiency of the service through 

offering a digital platform for recording client interactions and offering clients self-

management options where appropriate

114,000 114,000 114,000

035 Review of Tier 3 Weight Management provision The service was established to prepare individuals for bariatric surgery (90% of service 

users April 15 - June 17 went on to surgery). However this is not aligned with the 

prevention role of public health in a system wide approach to obesity. Furthermore, in 

2014, NHS England published commissioning guidance, outlining that Clinical 

Commissioning Groups were the preferred option as the primary commissioners for tier 

3 weight management.

79,000 79,000 79,000

036 Improved efficiency in Sexual Health Contract (2% of contract value) No impact - The reduction forms part of planned service efficiencies that have been 

agreed with providers as part of the process of procuring these services, and which 

have been built into the contract conditions for this service

43,000 43,000 43,000

Health and Social Care Total 1,096,600 1,096,600 1,096,600

Housing

Director of Property & Housing Services

037 Provision of a Housing Enabling Service and management of mobile home park to 

other local authorities

No adverse impact to services 33,000 33,000 33,000

038 Increase charge for the Telecare service No adverse impact to services 48,000 48,000 48,000

039 Expand the scope of the Telecare Service into Telehealth provision Expansion of chargeable service 20,000 20,000 20,000

040 Provision of the Housing Options Management Service to Other local authorities No adverse impact to services 8,000 8,000 8,000

Housing Total 109,000 109,000 109,000

P
age 52



Saving 

2018/19

£

Saving 

2019/20

£

Saving 

2020/21

£

Indicative Savings Proposal

Appendix B

INDICATIVE BUDGET SAVINGS 2018/19

Planning Regeneration and Economic Development

Director of Property & Housing Services

041 Income from Commercial Property Acquisitions No impact - Avoids cuts to services 790,100 790,100 790,100

Director of Regeneration

042 Additional rental income from Enterprise Centres No adverse impact to services 25,000 25,000 25,000

Planning Regeneration and Economic Development Total 815,100 815,100 815,100

Resources

Director of Community & Communication

043 Service and management  review No Impact - Already implemented 137,800 137,800 137,800

044 Saving following review of Voluntary and Community Sector Contract Reconfigured service responding to consultation feedback 30,000 30,000 30,000

045 Review of Traded Services Review in light of changing demands 20,000 20,000 20,000

Director of Culture & City Development

046 Income arising from additional room used for wedding ceremonies and increase in 

some other fees

No impact - Avoids cuts to services 30,000 30,000 30,000

047 Cemeteries income Increase in fees whilst ensuring fee levels remain below the Hampshire average 10,000 10,000 10,000

Director of Finance & Information Technology

048 Reduction in Accountancy resources following investment in IT systems (e.g. 

Forecasting and Business Intelligence) leading to changes in the ways of working and 

facilitating a reduction in number of teams from 5 to 4

No Impact - Already implemented 80,700 80,700 80,700

049 Development of shared services arrangements with other organisations (primarily 

Payroll)

No impact - Business already acquired 55,000 55,000 55,000

050 Investment in Corporate Bonds No Impact - Already implemented 66,000 66,000 66,000

P
age 53



Saving 

2018/19

£

Saving 

2019/20

£

Saving 

2020/21

£

Indicative Savings Proposal

Appendix B

INDICATIVE BUDGET SAVINGS 2018/19

051 Introduction of charge for street naming & numbering service Full year financial impact of saving implemented in 2017/18 10,000 10,000 10,000

052 IT Contract management - savings on external spend Full year financial impact of saving implemented in 2017/18 15,000 15,000 15,000

053 Bringing current managed network monitoring contract in-house Full year financial impact of saving implemented in 2017/18 12,500 12,500 12,500

054 Renegotiation of Tape Drive Back Up Contract No impact - Avoids cuts to services 17,000 17,000 17,000

055 Income from IT related services and brokerage provided to external public sector 

organisations

No impact - Avoids cuts to services 25,000 25,000 25,000

056 IT Contract management review - Use of Crown Commercial Framework No impact - Avoids cuts to services 5,000 5,000 5,000

057 Self service facility for IT helpdesk No impact - Avoids cuts to services 32,000 32,000 32,000

058 Implement Microsoft 365 No impact - Avoids cuts to services 16,000 16,000 16,000

059 Reduction in systems support requirement following a systematic review of applications 

for cloud based solutions

No impact - Avoids cuts to services 20,000 20,000 20,000

Director of Human Resources, Legal & Performance

060 Service review No impact - Avoids cuts to services 25,000 25,000 25,000

061 In house provision of HR support to Port No Impact - Already implemented 20,000 20,000 20,000

062 Income from trading and shared services No impact - Avoids cuts to services 54,000 54,000 54,000

Director of Property & Housing Services

063 Staffing Review - Landlord Maintenance No adverse impact to services 50,000 50,000 50,000

064 Staffing Review - Security No adverse impact to services 37,000 37,000 37,000

065 Additional external Income from Other LA energy works and external Health & Safety 

services

No adverse impact to services 30,000 30,000 30,000

Resources Total 798,000 798,000 798,000

P
age 54



Saving 

2018/19

£

Saving 

2019/20

£

Saving 

2020/21

£

Indicative Savings Proposal

Appendix B

INDICATIVE BUDGET SAVINGS 2018/19

Traffic and Transportation

Director of Regeneration

066 Improvements in administration and new ways of working in parking service e.g. online 

processing of permits and renewals

No adverse impact to services 120,000 120,000 120,000

067 Reduction in non PFI Maintenance Increased risk of delays in carrying out responsive repairs 50,000 50,000 50,000

068 Reduction in annual Tri-Sail maintenance budget Any excess year on year spend would need to come from Sails reserve 15,000 15,000 15,000

069 Review of Transport Service Structure Some reduction in capacity 60,000 60,000 60,000

070 Reduction in Subsidised Bus Routes No Impact - Already implemented 35,000 35,000 35,000

071 Reduction in Passenger Transport administration costs Less publicity and hard copy information material available to the public 10,000 10,000 10,000

072 Reduction of costs associated with opening new Traffic Management Centre No adverse impact to services 15,000 15,000 15,000

Traffic and Transportation Total 305,000 305,000 305,000

Other Expenditure

Director of Finance & Information Technology

073 Repayment holiday on debt transferred as part of the 1997 Local Government 

Reorganisation

Same overall amount of funds set aside but over a longer period 269,000 269,000 269,000

Other Expenditure Total 269,000 269,000 269,000

Grand Total 4,000,000 4,000,000 4,000,000

P
age 55



T
his page is intentionally left blank



 

1 
 

www.portsmouth.gov.uk 

 
Agenda item:  

Title of meeting: 
 

 City Council 

Date of meeting: 
 

12 December 2017 

Subject: 
 

Review of Political Proportionality on Committees and Panels 

Report by: 
 

Chief Executive 

Wards affected: 
 

N/A 

Key decision: 
 

No 

 

 
1. Purpose of report  
 
Following the recent change in Group strengths on the Council with Councillor Bird joining 
the Conservative Group and Councillor Godier becoming a non-aligned Independent 
Member,  "The Independent Group"  has ceased to exist and there is a consequent need 
under the Local Government and Housing Act 1989, to review the allocation of committee 
seats.  
 
2.  Recommendations 
 
2.1 That Council 

 
(a Determine the allocation of seats on committees and panels based 

on the information set out below, having regard to any agreement 
between the affected Group and Members  

 
(b Ratify consequent named membership changes proposed at the 

meeting. 
 
 
 
 
 

 
3.  Background Information and implications 
 
As a result of these changes, the Group strengths and consequent seats on committees 
are as shown in the table overleaf (the figures in brackets indicate the position prior to the 
change) 
 
 
 
 

Page 57

Agenda Item 8



 

2 
 

www.portsmouth.gov.uk 

 
 
Impact on Committee/Panel Places 
 
Whilst on a strict arithmetical basis, the Conservative Group's allocation would be 38, as 
the Group legally cannot have a majority of any Committees unless it has an overall 
majority of Members on the Council, it cannot take up its full allocation.  
 
Therefore the Conservative Group's actual allocation increases by one to 37. The former 
Independent Group held three seats, all taken by Councillor Godier, so one of these seats 
goes to the Conservative Group and the other two seats go to Councillor Godier as a non-
aligned member.    
 
Councillor Godier is currently a member of both the Traffic Environment and Community 
Safety and the Children and Young People Scrutiny Panels, plus the Licensing Committee  
 
As the Education, Children and Young Peoples Scrutiny Panel is the only Panel which the 
Conservative Group can gain a seat on without giving it a majority, it may be considered 
prudent to assign that seat to that Group, again having regard to any agreement between 
the affected Group and members.      
 
No other Groups on the Council are affected by this change in Group strengths.  
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Page 58



 

3 
 

www.portsmouth.gov.uk 

Consequently the total number of seats be divided as follows * (subject to inserting the 
updated changes once approved. 
 
Groups 1 2 3 4 5 6 
  

N
o

 o
f 

C
ll
rs

 

T
o

ta
l 
N

o
 o

f 
C

o
m

m
it

te
e
 

S
e

a
ts

 

L
ic

e
n

s
in

g
 C

o
m

m
it

te
e
 

(1
5
 M

e
m

b
e
rs

) 

P
la

n
n

in
g

 C
o

m
m

it
te

e
 (

1
0

 

M
e

m
b

e
rs

) 

7
 c

o
m

m
it

te
e
s
 a

n
d

  

p
a
n

e
ls

 (
s

e
e

 n
o

te
) 

 

(6
 M

e
m

b
e
rs

 e
a

c
h

) 

S
c

ru
ti

n
y
 M

a
n

a
g

e
m

e
n

t 

P
a

n
e

l 
 

(9
 M

e
m

b
e
rs

) 

Conservative 21 (20) 37 (36) 7 5 21 (20) 4 
Liberal 
Democrat 

15 27 5 4 15 3 

UKIP 2 4 1 1 1 1 
Labour 2 4 1 0 2 1 
Non-Aligned 
Independent 
PG  

1 (0) 2 (3 as 
part of the 

former 
Ind Gp) 

1 0 1 (2 as 
part of the 
former Ind 

Gp) 

0 
 
 

Non-Aligned 
Independent JF 

 1  2  0 0 2 0 

  42 76 15 10 42 9 
 
 
 

15 members  Licensing Committee 

10 members  Planning Committee 

7 x 6 member 
Committee/panels 

Employment Committee / Governance & Audit & Standards 
Committee / Health Overview Scrutiny Panel / EYCP Scrutiny / EDCL 
Scrutiny / TECS Scrutiny / HSC Scrutiny. 

9 members  Scrutiny Management Panel 

 
4. Legal Implications - legal comments are embodied in the report 
 
5. Finance Comments - none in relation to this report 
 
 
 
 
……………………………………………… 
Signed by: 
 
 

Page 59



 

4 
 

www.portsmouth.gov.uk 

 
 
 
Background list of documents: Section 100D of the Local Government Act 1972 
 
The following documents disclose facts or matters, which have been relied upon to a 
material extent by the author in preparing this report: 
 

Title of document  Location 

  

  

 
 
 
The recommendation(s) set out above were approved/ approved as amended/ deferred/ 
rejected by ……………………………… on ……………………………… 
 
 
 
 
 
……………………………………………… 
Signed by: 
 
 
 

Page 60


	Agenda
	2 To approve as a correct record the Minutes of
	7 Portsmouth City Council Revenue Budget 2018/19 - Savings Proposals
	Revenue Budget Report Dec 2017 Appendix B, 11/12/2017 Cabinet

	8 Review of the political balance on committees and Panels

